
 

 
 

William Murdock, AICP 
Executive Director 

Chris Amorose Groomes 
Chair 

Michelle Crandall 
Vice Chair 

Ben Kessler 
Secretary 

NOTICE OF A MEETING 
 

CENTRAL OHIO BLUEWAYS:  WATER TRAIL DESIGNATION 
WORKING GROUP 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

HYBRID MEETING 
 

July 23, 2024, 11:00 AM – 12:00 PM 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Welcome & Purpose 
 

2. Introductions 
 

3. SMART Goals 
 

4. Working Group Structure 
 

5. Next Steps 
 

6. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please notify Tunazzina Alam at talam@morpc.org to confirm your attendance for this 
meeting or if you require special assistance. 

 
 

The next Water Trail Designation Working Group Meeting is TBD 
This Meeting will be hybrid; details to follow. 

 



From: Jonathan Miller
To: J.M. Rayburn; Justin Milam; conroy.36@osu.edu; zac.guthrie@gahanna.gov;

zmessinger@preservationparks.com; Reece, Jason; jkhatton@columbus.gov; jtdoan@columbus.gov; Lynn
Kaufman; Jonathan Miller; Tunazzina Alam

Subject: COB: Water Trail Designation Working Group Summary
Date: Friday, July 26, 2024 12:42:52 PM
Attachments: image001.png

WaterTrailDesignationWG_Roster.xlsx
BluewaysSchemas.xlsx
COB_WTPartnershipAgreementDraft_BigWalnutCreek.docx

Afternoon All,
 
I wanted to provide you a quick summary of our conversation and reiterate a few of the next steps. First
though, thank you everyone for participating! It’s for sure going to be a fun ride .
 
After we went through some introductions, we began an open discussion/brainstorm session on a
potential order of events and various other considerations.  Below (in bulleted format) is a summary of
those ideas:
 

Potential Order for Designation
Big Walnut Creek

Assist with refining the designation process
Olentangy River

Expand upon the designation process
Need to work with Columbus on expansion of existing segment

Scioto River
Alum Creek

Other Considerations
Private Property Notifications for Public Meetings

Needed to add to transparency
Agreement Inclusions

Maintenance or Access Points / Banks
Potential to Include Invasive Species Removal Commitments

Maintenance of Waterway Hazards
Individual V Cost-Sharing Mechanism

Signage
QR Codes for Reporting Hazards
Safe Practices

Trail Counters
QR Code to Identify Presence on Waterway

Assist with Safety?
Potential for Trail Cameras

Water Monitoring
 
We also confirmed that the group is likely best served with a more informal structure to promote a more
roundtable-type discussion.
 
Attached are a few files for your records, convenience, and review.  The roster attachment
(WaterTrailDesignationWG_Roster) includes the information I have for the Water Trail Designation
Working Group, including emails, so we can all get in touch with each other as needed.  I also attached
an excel sheet (BluewaysSchemas) which outlines the current attribute fields we included in the new
shapefiles for the updated blueways mapping, as well as the rough draft Partnership Agreement that the
Advisory Panel worked on using Big Walnut Creek as the subject waterway.  The Access Points tab will
have the fields for the access points.

mailto:jmiller@morpc.org
mailto:jrayburn@dublin.oh.us
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=user91b893c0
mailto:conroy.36@osu.edu
mailto:zac.guthrie@gahanna.gov
mailto:zmessinger@preservationparks.com
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=user2420194c
mailto:jkhatton@columbus.gov
mailto:jtdoan@columbus.gov
mailto:lkaufman@morpc.org
mailto:lkaufman@morpc.org
mailto:jmiller@morpc.org
mailto:talam@morpc.org





Water Trail Designation WG

		Updated: 7/26/2024

		Water Trail Designation Working Group

		ENTITY REPRESENTED		NAME		ORGANIZATION		TITLE		EMAIL

		Partnership Group - Scioto River		J.M. Rayburn		City of Dublin		Planner II		jrayburn@dublin.oh.us

		Partnership Group - Scioto River		Justin Milam		City of Upper Arlington		City Planner		jmilam@uaoh.net

		Partnership Group - Olentangy River		Maria Conroy		The Ohio State University		Associate Professor		conroy.36@osu.edu

		Partnership Group - Big Walnut Creek		Zac Guthrie		City of Gahanna		Parks Superintendent		zac.guthrie@gahanna.gov

		A Regional (Non-Franklin) County Parks District		Zach Messinger		Preservation Parks of Delaware County		Park Planner		zmessinger@preservationparks.com

		Steering Committee Recommendation		Jason Reece		The Ohio State University		Professor		reece.35@osu.edu

		Steering Committee Recommendation		Julia Hatton		City of Columbus				jkhatton@columbus.gov

		Steering Committee Recommendation		Jenny Doan		City of Columbus				jtdoan@columbus.gov

		MORPC STAFF		Lynn Kaufman		MORPC		Executive Assistant		LKaufman@morpc.org

				Jonathan Miller		MORPC		Principal Planner		Jmiller@morpc.org

				Tunazzina Alam		MORPC		Staff Liaison		talam@morpc.org











mailto:zac.guthrie@gahanna.govmailto:jkhatton@columbus.govmailto:jtdoan@columbus.govmailto:reece.35@osu.edumailto:talam@morpc.org


FGD Domains

		FGD Name		CentralOhioBlueways



		DOMAIN		DESCRIPTION		FIELD TYPE		DOMAIN TYPE		SPLIT POLICY		MERGE POLICY		CONNECTS TO

														BLUEWAYS		ACCESS POINTS		HAZARDS		WATER MONITORING STATIONS		BLUEWAY MILE MARKERS

		Blueway		Blueway Names		Text		Coded Value Domain		Duplicate		Default		Name		Blueway		Blueway				Blueway

		County		County Names		Text		Coded Value Domain		Duplicate		Default		WCounty, Ecounty		County

		Navigable		Navigability of the blueway segment		Text		Coded Value Domain		Duplicate		Default		Navig

		Difficulty		Access Point Ease of Access		Text		Coded Value Domain		Duplicate		Default

		YesNo		General Domain for YesNo Fields		Text		Coded Value Domain		Duplicate		Default				Sign_Road, Sign_Blue, ADA, Boat_Stor, Bike_Acc, Parking, Camping, Picnic, Shelter, Trash, Restroom, Electric, Water, Shower

		AccessType		Level of Established Access		Text		Coded Value Domain		Duplicate		Default				Type

		Parking		Type of parking available		Text		Coded Value Domain		Duplicate		Default				Pri_Park, Sec_Park

		Hazard		Type of hazard		Text		Coded Value Domain		Duplicate		Default						HazType

















Coded Values

		FGD Name		CentralOhioBlueways



		DOMAIN:  BLUEWAY

		CODE		DESCRIPTION

		BDC		Big Darby Creek

		SCI		Scioto River

		OLN		Olentangy River

		ALM		Alum Creek

		BWC		Big Walnut Creek

		PRT		Portage Route



		DOMAIN:  COUNTY

		CODE		DESCRIPTION

		DEL		Delaware County

		FAI		Fairfield County

		FRA		Franklin County

		KNO		Knox County

		LIC		Licking County

		MAD		Madison County

		MAR		Marion County

		MRW		Morrow County

		PIC		Pickaway County

		UNI		Union County



		DOMAIN:  NAVIGABLE

		CODE		DESCRIPTION

		Y		Yes - Annually

		S		Yes - Seasonally

		N		No - Never



		DOMAIN:  DIFFICULTY

		CODE		DESCRIPTION

		E		Easy

		M		Moderate

		D		Difficult



		DOMAIN:  YESNO

		CODE		DESCRIPTION

		Y		Yes

		N		No



		DOMAIN:  ACCESSTYPE

		CODE		DESCRIPTION

		U		Undeveloped

		I		Improved

		D		Developed



		DOMAIN:  PARKING

		CODE		DESCRIPTION

		DED		Dedicated Off-Street

		SHA		Shared Off-Street

		ON		On-Street

		NO		None



		DOMAIN:  HAZARD

		CODE		DESCRIPTION

		DAM		Lowhead Dam

		FTR		Fallen Tree

		LOG		Log Jam

		OUT		Outfall present

		ROC		Rocky Area

		OTH		Other





Blueways

		Name		CentralOhioBlueways

		Alias		Central Ohio Blueways

		Feature Class Type		Line

		M Values		Yes

		Z Values		No

		Spatial Reference		NAD 1983 (2011) StatePlane Ohio South FIPS 3402 (US Feet)

		XY Tolerence		Default

		Z Tolerance		Default

		Accept Default Resolution and Domain Extent		Yes

		Configuration Keyword		Default



		FIELD NAME		ALIAS		DESCRIPTION*		DATA TYPE		ALLOW NULL		HIGHLIGHT		NUMBER FORMAT		DOMAIN		DEFAULT

		OBJECTID		OBJECTID		Auto Generated		Auto Generated		YES		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Name		Name		Name of Blueway		Text (3)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Blueway		Leave Blank

		WJuris		West Jurisdiction		Jurisdiction on the west side of the blueway segment		Text (50)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		EJuris		East Jurisdiction		Jurisdiction on the east side of the blueway segment		Text (50)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		WCounty		West County		County on the west side of the blueway segment		Text (3)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		County		Leave Blank

		ECounty		East County		County on the east side of the blueway segment		Text (3)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		County		Leave Blank

		Dist_Mile		Distance (Miles)		Distance of blueway segment in miles		Float		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Navig		Navigability		Typical navigability of the blueway segment		Text (1)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Navigable		Y

		TimeBEG_Min		Beginner Skill Time (Min)		Time to kayak the blueway segment in minutes		Float		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		TimeINT_Min		Intermediate Skill Time (Min)		Time to canoe the blueway segment in minutes		Float		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		TimeEXP_Min		Expert Skill Time (Min)		Time to stand-up paddleboard the segment in minutes		Float		YES		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		AccessPts		Access Points		The number of access points along the blueway segment		Short Integer		YES		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank



		*Not included in Fields in ArcGIS.  For reference only.



		*Dynamic Segmentation























































Access Points

		Name		CentralOhioBlueways_AccessPoints

		Alias		Central Ohio Blueways Access Points

		Feature Class Type		Point

		M Values		No

		Z Values		No

		Spatial Reference		NAD 1983 (2011) StatePlane Ohio South FIPS 3402 (US Feet)

		XY Tolerence		Default

		Z Tolerance		Default

		Accept Default Resolution and Domain Extent		Yes

		Configuration Keyword		Default



		FIELD NAME		ALIAS		DESCRIPTION*		DATA TYPE		ALLOW NULL		HIGHLIGHT		NUMBER FORMAT		DOMAIN		DEFAULT

		ID		OBJECTID		Auto Generated		Auto Generated		NO		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		AP_ID		Access Point ID		ID for the Access Point		Text (5)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Name		Access Point Name		Name of the access point		Text (100)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Address		Address		Address of access point, or nearest intersection		Text (100)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Blueway		Blueway		Blueway that is accessed through this location		Text (3)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Blueways		Leave Blank

		Jurisd		Jurisdiction		City or Township that the access point is located in		Text (50)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Zip		Zip		Zip code		Short Integer		YES		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		County		County		County that the access point is located in		Text (3)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		County		Leave Blank

		Mile		Mile Marker		Mile Marker number nearest to the access point		Float		YES		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Dist_From		Distance From		Distance from the last access point		Float		YES		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Dist_To		Distance To		Distance to the next access point		Float		YES		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Difficulty		Difficulty		Difficulty of accessing the water at this location		Text (1)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Difficulty		Leave Blank

		Diff_Desc		Difficulty Description		Details informing the level of difficulty		Text (100)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Sign_Road		Roadway Signage		The presence of signage for the access point along the roadway		Text (1)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		YesNo		Leave Blank

		Sign_Blue		Blueway Signage		The presence of signage for the access point along the blueway		Text (1)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		YesNo		Leave Blank

		Desc		Description		Description of the access point		Text (100)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Env_Conc		Environmental Concerns		Environmental concerns at the access point		Text (100)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		ADA		ADA Accessibility		ADA accessibility of the access point		Text (1)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		YesNo		Leave Blank

		Type		Access Type		Type of access point		Text (1)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		AccessType		Leave Blank

		Boat_Stor		Boat Storage		Availability of boat storage options		Text (1)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		YesNo		Leave Blank

		Bike_Acc		Bike Access		Bicycle accessibility to the access point		Text (1)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		YesNo		Leave Blank

		Parking		Parking		Availability of Parking		Text (1)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		YesNo		Leave Blank

		Park_Pri		Primary Parking		The primary option for parking		Text (3)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		ParkType		Leave Blank

		Park_Sec		Secondary Parking		The secondary option for parking, if any		Text (3)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		ParkType		Leave Blank

		Park_Fee		Parking Fee		The fee for parking		Short Integer		YES		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Park_Dist		Parking Distance		Distance from the parking area to the water		Short Integer		YES		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Camping		Camping		Availability of camping options		Text (1)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		YesNo		Leave Blank

		Picnic		Picnic Areas		Availability of Picnic Areas		Text (1)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		YesNo		Leave Blank

		Shelter		Shelter Pavilions		Availbility of shelter areas or pavilions		Text (1)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		YesNo		Leave Blank

		Trash		Trash Receptacles		Availability of trash recepticles		Text (1)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		YesNo		Leave Blank

		Restroom		Restrooms		Availability of restroom facilities		Text (1)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		YesNo		Leave Blank

		Electric		Electric		Availability of electric outlets		Text (1)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		YesNo		Leave Blank

		Water		Potable Water		Availability of drinking fountains		Text (1)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		YesNo		Leave Blank

		Shower		Shower		Availability of showers		Text (1)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		YesNo		Leave Blank

		Cont_Name		Contact Name		Name of person responsible for the access point		Text (50)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Cont_Email		Contact Email		Email of person responsible for the access point		Text (50)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Cont_Phone		Contact Phone		Phone number of person responsible for the access point		Short Integer		YES		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Own_Link		Access Point Link		URL for the access point, if any		Text (255)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank				<a href="INSERT URL HERE" target="_top">ACCESS POINT NAME</a>

		Pic_Link		Access Point Picture		URL for the picture to be displayed in AGOL		Text (255)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Lat		Latitude		Latitude		Float		YES		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Long		Longitude		Longitude		Float		YES		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank



		*Not included in Fields in ArcGIS.  For reference only.





Hazards

		Name		CentralOhioBlueways_Hazards

		Alias		Central Ohio Blueways Hazards

		Feature Class Type		Point

		M Values		No

		Z Values		No

		Spatial Reference		NAD 1983 (2011) StatePlane Ohio South FIPS 3402 (US Feet)

		XY Tolerence		Default

		Z Tolerance		Default

		Accept Default Resolution and Domain Extent		Yes

		Configuration Keyword		Default



		FIELD NAME		ALIAS		DESCRIPTION*		DATA TYPE		ALLOW NULL		HIGHLIGHT		NUMBER FORMAT		DOMAIN		DEFAULT

		OBJECTID		OBJECTID		Auto Generated		Auto Generated		NO		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		HazType		Hazard Type		Type of hazard		Text (3)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		HazType		Leave Blank

		Blueway		Blueway		Blueway that the hazard is on		Text (3)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Blueways		Leave Blank

		Name		Name		Name of the hazard		Text (50)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Desc		Description		Description of the hazard		Text (100)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Avoid		Avoidance		Directions to avoid hazard		Text (255)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Lat		Latitude		Latitude		Float		YES		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Long		Longitude		Longitude		Float		YES		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank



		*Not included in Fields in ArcGIS.  For reference only.





Water Monitoring Stations

		Name		WaterMonitoringStations_USGS

		Alias		USGS Water Monitoring Stations

		Feature Class Type		Point

		M Values		No

		Z Values		No

		Spatial Reference		NAD 1983 (2011) StatePlane Ohio South FIPS 3402 (US Feet)

		XY Tolerence		Default

		Z Tolerance		Default

		Accept Default Resolution and Domain Extent		Yes

		Configuration Keyword		Default



		FIELD NAME		ALIAS		DESCRIPTION*		DATA TYPE		ALLOW NULL		HIGHLIGHT		NUMBER FORMAT		DOMAIN		DEFAULT

		OBJECTID		OBJECTID		Auto Generated		Auto Generated		NO		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		USGSID		USGS ID Number		8 Digit ID for the Water Monitoring Station		Long Integer		YES		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Name		Name		Name of the USGS Water Monitoring Station		Text (100)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		SFlow		Streamflow		Discharge (Cubic Feet per Second)		Text (255)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank				<a href="INSERT URL HERE" target="_top">STREAMFLOW</a>

		SWLevels		Surface-Water Levels		Gage Height (Feet)		Text (255)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank				<a href="INSERT URL HERE" target="_top">WATER LEVEL</a>

		Lat		Latitude		Latitude		Float		YES		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Long		Longitude		Longitude		Float		YES		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank



		*Not included in Fields in ArcGIS.  For reference only.



		*Pull in USGS?



		*Soil and Water?



		Alternate Source

		"Live Stream Gauges"		ESRI































































Blueway Mile Markers

		Name		CentralOhioBlueways_MileMarkers

		Alias		Central Ohio Blueways Mile Markers

		Feature Class Type		Point

		M Values		No

		Z Values		No

		Spatial Reference		NAD 1983 (2011) StatePlane Ohio South FIPS 3402 (US Feet)

		XY Tolerence		Default

		Z Tolerance		Default

		Accept Default Resolution and Domain Extent		Yes

		Configuration Keyword		Default



		FIELD NAME		ALIAS		DESCRIPTION*		DATA TYPE		ALLOW NULL		HIGHLIGHT		NUMBER FORMAT		DOMAIN		DEFAULT

		OBJECTID		OBJECTID		Auto Generated		Auto Generated		NO		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		MM_ID		Mile Marker ID		Mile Marker ID		Text (6)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Blueway		Blueway		Blueway that the mile marker applies to		Text (3)		YES		NO		Leave Blank		Blueway		Leave Blank

		MileMark		Mile Marker		Mileage number according to USGS Topographic maps		Float		YES		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Lat		Latitude		Latitude		Float		YES		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank

		Long		Longitude		Longitude		Float		YES		NO		Numeric		Leave Blank		Leave Blank



		*Not included in Fields in ArcGIS.  For reference only.



		Alternate Source

		"River Mile Maps - Ohio EPA"		ESRI






[image: A blue green and white square with triangles

Description automatically generated][image: ]MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100

Columbus, Ohio 43215

morpc.org



T. 614. 228.2663

TTY. 1.800.750.0750

info@morpc.org





[image: ]

CENTRAL OHIO BLUEWAYS

WATER TRAIL DESIGNATION PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT



BIG WALNUT CREEK



This Partnership Agreement (PA) between the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) and the Water Trail Designation’s Participating Entities - as listed under “1.2 PARTICIPATING ENTITIES / PARTNERS” - represents a mutual understanding and continuing partnership to establish guidelines for the promotion, operation, maintenance, and environmental stewardship of the Big Walnut Creek Water Trail (BWCWT) per the requirements of Water Trail Designation through the Ohio Department of Natural Resources (ODNR). See Appendix B for a list of definitions and acronyms.



1. STAKEHOLDERS & PARTNERS

State Water Trail Designation requires all entities or jurisdictions who own, operate, or manage publicly open and accessible access points along the designated segment of waterway to agree to the terms of a partnership agreement. However, in order to create a more holistic and inclusive Water Trail, all jurisdictions or entities who abut, wholly contain, or otherwise own, operate, or manage any section of any length of Big Walnut Creek have been contacted and invited to join as a Partner with the Big Walnut Creek Water Trail.



1.1 IMPACTED ENTITIES / STAKEHOLDERS

The jurisdictions and entities who have a stake or vested interest in a Big Walnut Creek Water Trail are outlined below. These jurisdictions and entities have been identified by looking at which jurisdictions abut – or wholly contain – a section of the Big Walnut Creek Water Trail or operate/manage a public access point along the Big Walnut Creek Water Trail.



1.1.1 Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC)

1.1.2 Blendon Township

1.1.3 City of Columbus

1.1.4 City of Gahanna

1.1.5 City of Groveport

1.1.6 Hamilton Township

1.1.7 Harrison Township

1.1.8 Village of Lockbourne

1.1.9 Madison Township

1.1.10 Village of Obetz

1.1.11 City of Westerville

1.1.12 City of Whitehall

1.1.13 Columbus and Franklin County Metro Parks

1.1.14 Pickaway County

1.1.15 Franklin County



1.2 PARTICIPATING ENTITIES / PARTNERS	Comment by Jonathan Miller: This list will be updated and amended based on the jurisdictions which agree to take part in the Water Trail. Entities with an asterisk are identified as those who own, operate, or manage a public access point and would be required for designation.

The following entities are those jurisdictions and entities from Section 1.1 above who have agreed to enter into this PA and are bound by the terms of the agreement contained within.  All jurisdictions or entities who own, operate, or manage a public access point are required for Water Trail Designation. Further references to “participating parties” or “partners” shall refer to the collective entities outlined below.



1.2.1 Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC)

1.2.2 Blendon Township

1.2.3 City of Columbus*

1.2.4 City of Gahanna*

1.2.5 City of Groveport

1.2.6 Hamilton Township

1.2.7 Harrison Township

1.2.8 Village of Lockbourne

1.2.9 Madison Township

1.2.10 Village of Obetz*

1.2.11 City of Westerville

1.2.12 City of Whitehall*

1.2.13 Columbus and Franklin County Metro Parks*

1.2.14 Pickaway County

1.2.15 Franklin County



*Either owns, operates, or manages a public access point along the Big Walnut Creek Water Trail.





2. PURPOSE & GOAL

The purpose of this agreement is to describe how Central Ohio Blueways, a Program of MORPC (Sponsor), and the Participating Entities in Section 1 above will work together on the implementation and promotion of Big Walnut Creek as a Water Trail.



The following demonstrates the goals behind the organization of this PA.



2.1 Guide the maintenance, promotion, and environmental stewardship of the Big Walnut Creek

2.2 Obtain State Water Trail Designation through ODNR.

2.3 Describe the geographic boundaries/limits of the Water Trail. Termini for the Water Trail may be found in Appendix A, and may change over time, as described in Section 3 of this PA.

2.4 Improve the quality of life for Central Ohio residents through the following effects and activities related to State Water Trail Designation.

2.4.1 Provide opportunities for kayaking and canoeing to meet public health, recreational, and transportation needs.

2.4.2 Provide additional and improved access to the natural and scenic waterways in Central Ohio communities; and

2.4.3 Create more equitable and accessible outdoor recreational opportunities for Central Ohio communities.

2.4.4 Create organic stewardship - and knowledge – of the ecologically sensitive areas of Central Ohio’s waterways.

2.4.5 Build on outdoor recreation tourism across Central Ohio by supporting eco-tourism related to Water Trails.

2.4.6 Identify opportunities for partnership members to address or prevent water quality problems to ensure the viability of ongoing recreational and environmental stewardship solutions.

2.4.7 Identify safety hazards and communicate best safety practices in navigating water hazards.

2.5 Provide guidance on branding, signage, and marketing of the BWCWT through an online presence and interactive mapping. This guidance will aim to educate users in two ways:

2.5.1 Information regarding safe and legal access to - and navigation of - the water for non-motorized paddle sports; and

2.5.2 To educate the public on the importance of water quality and the ecological diversity that Central Ohio’s waterways provide, as well as best practices for natural environment stewardship.





3. GEOGRAPHIC SCOPE

This PA covers the BWCWT, beginning at the Hoover Dam Park Access Point, and terminating at the confluence with the Scioto River (See Appendix A for the Big Walnut Creek Map). These termini are subject to change. This PA is also applicable to all future extensions of the BWCWT. Additionally, any future subtractions from the BWCWT will be released from the requirements of this PA.



The following geographic features are subject to the terms of this PA.  See Appendix A for a map illustrating the Big Walnut Creek Water Trail termini, access points, and hazards.



3.1 Public access points that are included as part of the Central Ohio Blueways Interactive Mapping application.

3.2 Water hazards that may be significant enough to interfere with the navigable channel of the waterway; and

3.3 Signage related to accessing the Water Trail, safety precautions related to the use of the Water Trail or navigating Water Hazards along the Water Trail, and environmental stewardship of the Water Trail.





4. SIGNAGE AND BRANDING 

No current guidelines are in place related to the signage and/or branding of Central Ohio Blueways or Big Walnut Creek. Central Ohio Blueways recommends that directional signage from public roadways, wayfinding signage from the water, and informational kiosks regarding the Water Trail and related information be included at the public access sites identified in Appendix A.



4.1	All participating entities agree to adhere to any future signage and branding guidelines which may be recommended by the Central Ohio Blueways Steering Committee, and adopted by a simple majority of the Participating Entities which may be active at the time of adoption.



4.2	Any adopted guidelines pertaining to signage and branding will be included as Appendix C, and may include (but not be limited to) the following signage types:



· Public access points;

· Waterway mile markers;

· Permanent or semi-permanent hazards (dams, temporary construction exceeding one month, strainers, low-water areas, etc.);

· Portage route locations;

· Bridge overpasses; and

· Central Ohio Greenway (COG) access points





5. ACCESSIBILITY

The following guidelines relate to the availability of the Water Trail’s access points, including hours of operation. 



5.1 The BWCWT is a public resource that is open 365 days a year.  The availability of individual access points; however, may be managed directly by the participating entity which owns and operates the respective access point, as identified in the Central Ohio Blueways Interactive Map.

5.2 Hours of Operation for access points located within a park or other property may be consistent with the hours of operation/access of the park or property that contains the access point.

5.3 The Water Trail itself may not be subject to restricted hours of operation/access.

5.4 All participating entities will maintain access points categorized as “Improved” according to their own respective Maintenance Plans.  The participating entity will provide MORPC with a summary of maintenance and operations activities for access points under their purview through a “Water Trail Access Point Maintenance Plan”.  See Appendix D for an aggregate list of Water Trail Access Point Maintenance Plans for the BWCWT.

5.5 “Unimproved” access points will not be required to be maintained on a recurring basis but must be addressed in the participating entity’s Water Trail Access Point Maintenance Plan.





6. RESPONSIBILITIES OF CENTRAL OHIO BLUEWAYS / MORPC

The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission - in accordance with this Partnership Agreement - shall be responsible for the following:



6.1 Access to the following:

6.1.1 The Central Ohio Blueways logo;

6.1.2 An aggregate list of maintenance plans covering all access points (See Appendix D).

6.2 MORPC will also provide professional assistance to the CENTRAL OHIO BLUEWAYS STEERING COMMITTEE, who will be responsible for:

6.2.1 The identification of potential funding opportunities which can be used to procure and install signage, print informational brochures, make improvements to existing access points, and create new access points; and

6.2.2 Documentation of best practices for access points of Water Trails.

6.3 MORPC will maintain and manage updates to an online presence for Central Ohio Blueways, including:

6.3.1 An interactive map showing the extent of all State Designation Water Trails in the Central Ohio Region, all Central Ohio Blueways Access Points, and known hazards and portage routes.

6.3.2 Boat Registration links and the rules pertaining to registering watercraft.

6.3.3 Information regarding safe paddling practices on Water Trails, including the navigation of water hazards; and

6.3.4 Water resource stewardship information, and other information regarding the protection of ecologically sensitive areas.

6.4 MORPC will coordinate the marketing of Central Ohio Blueways with the participating entities.

6.5 MORPC will host annual meetings of the participating entities in order to provide an opportunity for continued collaboration and information-sharing, discuss expansion or contraction of the Central Ohio Blueways system, and identify additional projects or needs of MORPC and the participating entities.

6.6 Elevate the consideration of water quality threats and opportunities, and advocate for more responsible and sustainable water quality management through the identification of potential funding opportunities to protect riparian corridors.





7. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTICIPATING ENTITIES

Participating Entities – in accordance with this Partnership Agreement – shall be responsible for the following:



7.1 Maintenance of the access points under their purview in accordance with their own, submitted maintenance protocols (See Appendix D). Maintenance activities are encouraged to include the following, but are not required components of any maintenance plans:

7.1.1 Pruning and vegetation clearance to permit safe travel to/from the access point and waterway, as needed;

7.1.2 The inclusion of either trash and recycling receptacles or pack-in-pack-out policies that are consistent with the Participating Entity’s policies;

7.1.3 Litter cleanup as needed, or on a recurring basis; and

7.1.4 Repair and replacement of signage, including the cleanup and removal of uninvited graffiti.

7.2 The inclusion of paddling safety and water resource protection information, and links/QR codes to water levels on all promotional materials regarding the Water Trail. These may be in accordance with Section 4 and Appendix C.

7.3 Exchanging educational information about conserving and protecting water resources in order to assist in the protection of Central Ohio waterways.





8. TERMS OF AGREEMENT

This Partnership Agreement (PA) between the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) and the Participating Entities is subject to the following:



8.1 This PA shall commence upon valid execution by all participating entities listed in Section 1.2 above.

8.2 This PA shall be executed in accordance with the laws of the State of Ohio. Any potential conflicts shall be deferred to any applicable state and local laws.

8.3 This PA constitutes the entire agreement among the parties, and no changes or modifications to this PA shall be made unless agreed to by all Participating Entities of this PA in writing via an addendum or signed, amended agreement, or as otherwise indicated within.





9. TERMINATION

Termination of this agreement may occur through either of the following actions:



9.1	MORPC may terminate this PA with sixty (60) days written notice to all Participating Entities and Central Ohio Blueways Steering Committee. If termination occurs, MORPC will no longer hold the responsibilities stated under Section 6. 



9.2	Any Participating Entity or MORPC may unilaterally withdraw from this PA with sixty (60) calendar days written notice to the other Participating Entities and Central Ohio Blueways Steering Committee. Should a Participating Entity who owns, operates, or manages a public access point request withdrawal from the Partnership Agreement, the Water Trail boundaries will be modified to exclude the section of waterway owned, operated, or maintained by that entity. An amended Partnership Agreement will be needed to reflect the Participating Entities withdrawal.





10. AUTHORIZING SIGNATURES AND DATES

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this non-binding Memorandum of Understanding through the signatures indicated below.



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION



		 



		SIGNATURE

		NAME (PRINTED) & TITLE

		DATE



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		BLENDON TOWNSHIP (FRANKLIN COUNTY)



		 



		SIGNATURE

		NAME (PRINTED) & TITLE

		DATE



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		CITY OF COLUMBUS



		 



		SIGNATURE

		NAME (PRINTED) & TITLE

		DATE



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		CITY OF GAHANNA



		 



		SIGNATURE

		NAME (PRINTED) & TITLE

		DATE



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		VILLAGE OF GROVEPORT



		 



		SIGNATURE

		NAME (PRINTED) & TITLE

		DATE



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		HAMILTON TOWNSHIP (FRANKLIN COUNTY)



		 



		SIGNATURE

		NAME (PRINTED) & TITLE

		DATE



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		HARRISON TOWNSHIP (PICKAWAY COUNTY)



		 



		SIGNATURE

		NAME (PRINTED) & TITLE

		DATE



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		VILLAGE OF LOCKBOURNE



		 



		SIGNATURE

		NAME (PRINTED) & TITLE

		DATE



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		MADISON TOWNSHIP (FRANKLIN COUNTY)



		 



		SIGNATURE

		NAME (PRINTED) & TITLE

		DATE



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		VILLAGE OF OBETZ



		 



		SIGNATURE

		NAME (PRINTED) & TITLE

		DATE



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		CITY OF WESTERVILLE



		 



		SIGNATURE

		NAME (PRINTED) & TITLE

		DATE



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		CITY OF WHITEHALL



		 



		SIGNATURE

		NAME (PRINTED) & TITLE

		DATE



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		COLUMBUS AND FRANKLIN COUNTY METRO PARKS



		 



		[bookmark: _Hlk145487253]SIGNATURE

		NAME (PRINTED) & TITLE

		DATE



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		[bookmark: _Hlk145487673]PICKAWAY COUNTY

		



		



		SIGNATURE

		NAME (PRINTED) & TITLE

		DATE

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		FRANKLIN COUNTY

		



		



		SIGNATURE

		NAME (PRINTED) & TITLE

		DATE

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		









[image: A blue green and white triangle

Description automatically generated]Ben Kessler

Interim Secretary

Michelle Crandall

Interim Vice Chair

Chris Amorose Groomes

Interim Chair

William Murdock, AICP

Executive Director





[image: ][image: ]	

image1.png







image4.png







image2.png

William Murdock, AICP Chris Amorose Groomes Michelle Crandall Ben Kessler
Executive Director Interim Chair Interim Vice Choir Secretory






image3.png









 
Finally, please use the following link to select times that would work best – in general – for
recurring working groups meetings.  I know early on, there may be some dates that won’t work for
some, but by nailing down a cadence, we’ll hopefully be able to schedule around those in the
future:  https://www.when2meet.com/?25719059-Lbvqc.
 
Thanks again everyone!
 
JONATHAN MILLER, MPA, AICP, GISP
Principal Planner | Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
T: 614.233.4219
111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 | Columbus, OH 43215

 

https://www.when2meet.com/?25719059-Lbvqc
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fwww.morpc.org%2f&c=E,1,9CK-C_gINxHCEguopwAkgaPqSO8ajLf3zSTJmVPX6_TqplwoeZPRHBd1fuY_lhw4HfpT33K8shQUoCDR-sTpg7wnKjcPSLJO4Hkr9k32EhayvsRW&typo=1

	AGENDA
	Summary

